
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

             

                                                                  

 

 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Thursday, November 7, 2019 – 3:00 p.m. 

Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom – M2-1 

 

Table of Contents 

 

 

 

(1) Agenda         Pages 2-3 

     

(2) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 

    Meeting of October 3, 2019       Pages 4-10 

     

(3) Gifts and Grants        Page 11 

       

(4) Minutes of the October 3, 2019 Student Outcomes Committee  Pages 12-42 

     

(5) Minutes of the October 23, 2019 Business Affairs Committee  Pages 43-76 

 

(6) List of 2020 Board Meeting Dates      Page 77 

 

(7) List of 2019-20 Important Dates      Page 78 

 

(8) Calendar of Events        Pages 79-80 

     

 

 

######## 

 

1



 

 

 

 

                      MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AGENDA 

Thursday, November 7, 2019 – 3:00 p.m. 

Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

 

 

(1) Meeting Called to Order 

 

(2) Public Comment 

 

(3) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 

 

(4) Report of the Student Outcomes Committee 

 

(5) Consent Agenda   

 

(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 

Meeting of October 3, 2019 

(b) Gifts and Grants  

(c) Academic Program Review: A.S. in Biology 

(d) Bookstore Management RFP 

(e) Request to Update the Commonfund Resolution 

  

(6) Report of the Chair 

 

(7) Foundation Report 

 

(8) Report of the President 

 

(9) New Business 

 

(10) Next Meeting:   Thursday, February 6, 2020 – 3:00 p.m. 

      Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

 

(11) Executive Session 

 

Future Committee Meetings: 

 

Business Affairs:    Wednesday, November 20, 2019 

      9:00 a.m. – Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 

 

Student Outcomes:    Thursday, February 6, 2020 

      1:30 p.m. – M2-34  

2



 

Audit Committee:    TBD 

 

Upcoming Events 

 

 Reception and Tour, Library Commons/ Thursday, November 14, 2019 

  Library     5:30 p.m. – Bonnell Building 

       Library Bridge 

         

 Board of Trustees Retreat   Saturday, November 16, 2019 

       8:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 

       Center for Business and Industry 

       1751 Callowhill Street, C2-5 

 

 Thanksgiving Holiday – College Closed November 28-29, 2019 

 

 College-Wide Holiday Celebration  Wednesday, December 11, 2019 

       11:00 a.m. – Winnet Building  

       Great Hall – S2-19 

 

 Winter Recess –    December 24, 2019, 12:00 p.m. – 

   College Closed    January 1, 2020 

 

 Philadelphia Martin Luther King, Jr.  Monday, January 20, 2020 

  Association for Non-Violence, Inc.  12:00 p.m. 

  35th Annual Awards and   Philadelphia 201 Hotel  

  Benefit Luncheon    17th & Race Streets, Liberty Ballroom 

  

 AACC/ACCT Community College  February 9-12, 2020 

   National Legislative Summit  Marriott Marquis Hotel 

       901 Massachusetts Avenue, NW 

       Washington, DC     

  

 

        

 

                                                         ################## 

3



 
COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 

Proceedings of the Meeting of the Board of Trustees 
Thursday, October 3, 2019 – 3:00 p.m. 

 
Present: Ms. Hernández Vélez, presiding; Mr. Clancy, Mr. Epps, Ms. Fulmore-Townsend, Ms. 

Ireland, Ms. Jean-Baptiste (by phone), Ms. McPherson, Ms. Posoff, Representative 
Roebuck, Dr. Generals, Dr. Gay, Mr. Eapen, Dr. Hirsch, Ms. de Fries, Ms. DiGregorio, Ms. 
Rooney, Ms. Sessoms, and Ms. Zellers 

 
(1) Executive Session 
 
 The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of litigation and other legal matters. 
 
(2) Meeting Called to Order 
 

Ms. Hernández Vélez called the meeting to order. 
 
(3) Public Comment 
 
 There were no requests for Public Comment. 
 
(4) Career and Advanced Technology Center Presentation 
 
 Dr. Generals stated that the Career and Advanced Technology Center project is progressing.  He 
asked Mr. David Schrader, Managing Partner, Schrader Group Architects, to provide an overview of the 
project. 
 
 Mr. Schrader reviewed and discussed drawings for the Career and Advanced Technology Center 
and guided the Board through a virtual tour of the Center.  Mr. Schrader also provided a timeline for the 
project, indicating that the project will be going out to bid in December 2019.   
 
 Ms. McPherson noted that staff must ensure that there will be diverse/minority vendor 
participation in the bid process.  Ms. Jean-Baptiste suggested that the College have an open house about 
the project before going out to bid. 
 
 Mr. Epps asked how many curriculum partners we have so far. 
 
 Dr. Hirsch stated that the College already has a number of existing partnerships.  He stated that 
the College is also in talks with Toyota to establish a partnership that would have the Toyota T-Ten 
Curriculum offered by the College's Automotive Tech Program.  The College will be the only provider for 
this Program in the Region.  The College will jointly develop a parallel degree program to the current 
automotive tech program. There will be a requirement that each student participates in a worksite 
education experience with a Toyota or Lexus dealer; thus, providing a direct pipeline to jobs.  Toyota will 
provide the College with 20-25 vehicles for use in training; special service tools; curriculum materials; 
support for faculty development; and access to the Region's Toyota and Lexus dealers for the purpose of 
gaining financial support. The partnership development timeline is to have the formal partnership 
agreement reached by the end of December 2019; curriculum and professional 

4



development beginning January 2020; staffing completed by fall 2020; marketing plan and 
implementation beginning fall 2020; and program offered in fall 2021.  

 
 Mr. Epps stated that a three-hour session should be scheduled for next spring to talk about all of 
the dimensions of the Career and Advanced Technology Center project. 
 
 Representative Roebuck mentioned that there is a renewed focus at the State level on career 
and technical education. 
 
 Ms. Ireland asked how flexible is the space at the Center for future use. 
 
 Mr. Schrader stated that the building will be built with the ability to make changes easily. 
 
(5) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 
 

Ms. Hernández Vélez stated that the items discussed at the Business Affairs Committee 
meetings are part of the Consent Agenda. 

 
(6) Report of the Student Outcomes Committee 
 
 Ms. Hernández Vélez reported that two academic programs were reviewed and discussed by the 
Student Outcomes Committee on September 5, 2019.  She indicated that the programs are part of the 
Consent Agenda.  Ms. Hernández Vélez stated that this was her last report on behalf of the Student 
Outcomes Committee.  Ms. Fulmore-Townsend will be chairing the Committee. 
 
(7) Report of the Audit Committee 
 
(7a) 2018-19 Fiscal Year Audit Report 
 
 Mr. Eapen reported that Grant Thornton had provided an overview of the 2018-19 Fiscal Year 
Audit.  He stated that the College received a clean audit, and that no significant deficiencies or material 
weaknesses were reported.  Mr. Eapen stated that the auditors also reviewed a few GASB statements, 
including GASB 75 which addresses other post-employment benefits. 
 

 Mr. Eapen stated that he had received a list of audit firms which the Committee will review 
prior to issuing an RFP for the external audit firm. 
 

Mr. Epps moved, with Ms. Fulmore-Townsend seconding, that the Board accept the 2018-19 
Fiscal Year Audit Report.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
(8) Consent Agenda  
 

Ms. Hernández Vélez requested approval of the following Consent Agenda: 
 
(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 

Meeting of September 5, 2019 
(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) Academic Program Reviews:  A.A in Art and Design and A.A. in Psychology 

5



(d) Roof Replacement Bonnell Loading Dock & Auditorium 
(e) Roof Replacement Mint Paver Roof 
(f) Awards for Furniture for the Library and Learning Commons Project 
(g) Contracts for Lobbying Services 
(h) Construction Manager for Career and Advanced Technology Center Project 
(i) Pharmacy Benefits Manager Contract 

 
Mr. Epps moved, with Ms. Posoff seconding, that the Board approve the Consent Agenda.  The 

motion carried unanimously. 
 

(9) Report of the Chair 
 

Ms. Hernández Vélez reminded members of the Board that the College is hosting the 
Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges Southeast Regional Trustees Dinner Meeting on 
Tuesday, November 12, 2019, 5:30 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. in the Pavilion, Klein Cube, P2-3.   Registration 
materials for the meeting will be forthcoming. 
 

Ms. Hernández Vélez reminded members of the Board that the Board Retreat is scheduled for 
Saturday, November 16, 2019, 8:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. in the Center for Business and Industry, 1751 
Callowhill Street, Room C2-5. 
 
(10) Foundation Report 
 
 Mr. Eapen provided the following update on the CCP Foundation: 
 

 A gift of $225,000 was received from Ms. Shirley Page in support of the 50th Anniversary 
Promise Scholarship endowment.  The check presentation was held on October 4, 2019.  
Dr. Generals stated that Ms. Page has been a donor for some time, and was compelled 
by CCP’s mission to make such an amazing gift to the College;   

 The 50th Scholarship for fall: 410 eligible students with awards totaling $76,688; the 
Field Scholarship: $72,810 awarded to 66 students; and 

 The 2020 Black and Gold Gala is scheduled for June 10, 2020 at the Crystal Tea Room. 
 
(11) Report of the President 
 
 Dr. Generals called attention to his memorandum in the Board folder outlining activities in 
which he participated September 6-October 3, 2019. 
 
(11a) Strategic Plan 
 
 In anticipation of the Board Retreat, Dr. Generals demonstrated College data, including the 
Strategic Plan and Plan Updates, that are used for decision making.  Dr. Generals also circulated the 
dashboard that the Student Outcomes reviews. 
 
 Mr. Epps stated that an integrated dashboard is our basis for Board conversations. 
 
 Dr. Generals called attention to the Strategic Plan and the Vision document which were placed 
on the Board meeting folder provided at the meeting. 

6



 
(11b) Performance Funding 
 
 At the request of Dr. Generals, Dr. Gay reviewed the basics of Act 70 which mandated the 
Pennsylvania Higher Education Performance Funding Commission.  The Commission will review and 
make recommendations about higher education funding, affordability, and effectiveness.  Dr. Gay stated 
that in response, the Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges created a committee with 
representatives from the 14 community colleges.  She stated that she is representing Community 
College of Philadelphia on the Committee.  Dr. Gay stated that the Committee met on September 27, 
2019 and reviewed best practices, and discussed ideas for guiding principles and metrics.  Those 
recommendations will be made to the community college presidents for review before the 
recommendations are given to the Pennsylvania Higher Education Performance Funding Commission.   
 
(11c) Appointment of Board Members 
 
 At the request of Dr. Generals, Ms. Sessoms provided an update on the appointment of Board 
members. 
 
 Mr. Epps stated that the emphasis should be on getting Board members with resources and 
relationships 
 
(11d) America250PA Innovation Challenge 
 
 At the request of Dr. Generals, Ms. Rooney provided an update on the College’s participation in 
America250 Innovation Challenge.  She stated that CCP is one of five community colleges in the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania participating in the competition where students will design and pitch a 
marketing campaign and engagement strategy for the launch of America250PA (the celebration of 
America’s 250th Anniversary).  Ms. Rooney stated that CCP held the first round of competition on 
October 1, and that the CCP student winner will participate in the second round of competition 
scheduled on October 23, 2019.   
 
(11e) Rail Park-Philadelphia Mural Arts Exhibition 
 
 At the request of Dr. Generals, Ms. Rooney provided a summary of events related to the Rail 
Park-Philadelphia Mural Arts Exhibition scheduled October 5-19, 2019.  The College is a partner in this 
artistic event. 
 
(12) New Business 
 
 There was no new business discussed at the meeting. 
 
(13) Next Meeting 
 
 The next meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, November 7, 2019 at 3:00 
p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1. 
 

The meeting adjourned at 4:20 p.m. 
   

7



 
 

COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF PHILADELPHIA 
Meeting of the Board of Trustees 

Thursday, October 3, 2019 – 3:00 p.m. 
MINUTES OF DECISIONS AND RESOLUTIONS 

 
 

Present: Ms. Hernández Vélez, presiding; Mr. Clancy, Mr. Epps, Ms. Fulmore-Townsend, Ms. 
Ireland, Ms. Jean-Baptiste (by phone), Ms. McPherson, Ms. Posoff, Representative 
Roebuck, Dr. Generals, Dr. Gay, Mr. Eapen, Dr. Hirsch, Ms. de Fries, Ms. DiGregorio, Ms. 
Rooney, Ms. Sessoms, and Ms. Zellers 

 
(1) Executive Session 
 
 The Executive Session was devoted to a discussion of litigation and other legal matters. 
 
(2) Meeting Called to Order 
 

Ms. Hernández Vélez called the meeting to order. 
 
(3) Public Comment 
 
 There were no requests for Public Comment. 
 
(4) Career and Advanced Technology Center Presentation 
 
 The Board was provided with a virtual tour of the Career and Advanced Technology Center 
project.    
 
(5) Report of the Business Affairs Committee 
 

The items discussed at the Business Affairs Committee meetings are part of the Consent 
Agenda. 

 
(6) Report of the Student Outcomes Committee 
 
 Two academic programs were reviewed and discussed by the Student Outcomes and are part of 
the Consent Agenda.   
 
(7) Report of the Audit Committee 
 
(7a) 2018-19 Fiscal Year Audit Report 
 

The Board accepted the 2018-19 Fiscal Year Audit Report. 
 
 
 

8



(8) Consent Agenda  
 

The Board approved the following Consent Agenda: 
 
(a) Proceedings and Minutes of Decisions and Resolutions 

Meeting of September 5, 2019 
(b) Gifts and Grants 
(c) Academic Program Reviews:  A.A in Art and Design and A.A. in Psychology 
(d) Roof Replacement Bonnell Loading Dock & Auditorium 
(e) Roof Replacement Mint Paver Roof 
(f) Awards for Furniture for the Library and Learning Commons Project 
(g) Contracts for Lobbying Services 
(h) Construction Manager for Career and Advanced Technology Center Project 
(i) Pharmacy Benefits Manager Contract 
 

(9) Report of the Chair 
 

The College is hosting the Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges Southeast Regional 
Trustees Dinner Meeting on Tuesday, November 12, 2019, 5:30 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. in the Pavilion, Klein 
Cube, P2-3.    
 

The Board Retreat is scheduled for Saturday, November 16, 2019, 8:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. in the 
Center for Business and Industry, 1751 Callowhill Street, Room C2-5. 
 
(10) Foundation Report 
 
 Mr. Eapen provided the following update on the CCP Foundation: 
 

 A gift of $225,000 was received from Ms. Shirley Page in support of the 50th Anniversary 
Promise Scholarship endowment.  The check presentation was held on October 4, 2019.  
Dr. Generals stated that Ms. Page has been a donor for some time, and was compelled 
by CCP’s mission to make such an amazing gift to the College;   

 The 50th Scholarship for fall: 410 eligible students with awards totaling $76,688; the 
Field Scholarship: $72,810 awarded to 66 students; and 

 The 2020 Black and Gold Gala is scheduled for June 10, 2020 at the Crystal Tea Room. 
 
(11) Report of the President 
 
(11a) Strategic Plan 
 
 In anticipation of the Board Retreat, Dr. Generals demonstrated College data, including the 
Strategic Plan and Plan Updates that are used for decision making.  Dr. Generals also circulated the 
dashboard that the Student Outcomes reviews. 
 
 Dr. Generals called attention to the Strategic Plan and the Vision document which were placed 
on the Board meeting folder provided at the meeting. 
 
 

9



 
 
(11b) Performance Funding 
 
 The Board was provided with an update of Act 70 which mandated the Pennsylvania Higher 
Education Performance Funding Commission to review and make recommendations about higher 
education funding, affordability, and effectiveness. 
 
(11c) Appointment of Board Members 
 
 Ms. Sessoms provided an update on the appointment of Board members. 
 
(11d) America250PA Innovation Challenge 
 
 The Board was provided with an update on the College’s participation in America250 Innovation 
Challenge in celebration of America’s 250th Anniversary.   
 
(11e) Rail Park-Philadelphia Mural Arts Exhibition 
 
 The Board was provided with a summary of events related to the Rail Park-Philadelphia Mural 
Arts Exhibition scheduled October 5-19, 2019.   
 
(12) New Business 
 
 There was no new business discussed at the meeting. 
 
(13) Next Meeting 
 
 The next meeting of the Board of Trustees is scheduled for Thursday, November 7, 2019 at 3:00 
p.m. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1. 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 4:20 p.m. 
   

10



GRANTS

Summary by Grant Type:

Government/Public Grants

  Federal -$                              414,475$                                

  State -$                              2,139,310$                             

  Local -$                              -$                                        

  Corporation -$                              -$                                        

  Foundation -$                              5,806$                                    

  Organization -$                              -$                                        

Grant Total -$                              2,559,591$                             

GIFTS

Summary by Gift Type:

Gifts to the Foundation ($5,000+) Amount Purpose

Private Donor Advised Fund 25,000$                        Scholarship - Endowed

Maguire Foundation 10,000$                        Scholarship - Restricted

Parx Casino 8,500$                          Event

Pincus Family Foundation 7,500$                          Scholarship - Restricted

Gifts In-Kind (estimated value $200+)

Community College of Philadelphia

Office of Institutional Advancement

Record of Grants and Gifts

November 2019 Meeting of the Board of Trustees

Private Grants

9/26/19 - 10/29/19
2020 FY

Year-to-Date

11



 

STUDENT OUTCOMES COMMITTEE OF THE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
MINUTES 

 
Thursday, October 3, 2019 

1:30 p.m. 
Conference Room M2-34 

 

Presiding:  Ms. Fulmore-Townsend 

Committee  
Members:   Mr. Clancy, Ms. Hernández Vélez, Ms. McPherson, Ms. Posoff 
 
College  
Members:  Ms. de Fries, Dr. Gay, Dr. Generals, Dr. Hirsch, Dr. Roberts 
 
Guests: Dr. Celenza, Ms. Frizell, Ms. Gordon, Dr. Powell 
 
(1) Executive Session 

There were no agenda items for the Executive Session. 
 

(2) Public Session 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of September 5, 2019 
The minutes were approved unanimously.  

 
(b) Academic Program Review: A.S. in Biology 

Ms. Frizell, from the Office of Academic Assessment, noted that the Biology degree 
was established in 2014 and has experienced consistent growth. Since 2016, 20 
degrees have been conferred. The retention rate for the program is higher than the rate 
for the College. She said that the program has one of the most comprehensive course-
level assessments. It is recommended that the program clarify how achievement of 
course learning outcomes relates to program learning outcomes. 
 
In response to a question from Mr. Clancy about contributions to the above-average 
retention rates, Dr. Powell, the department head, suggested several factors: grants that 
support minority students in sciences, books stipends, peer tutoring, and research 
opportunities. Dr. Powell explained that the most fundamental factor to retention has 
been the Biology Open Lab. Students are able to study in labs when the labs are not in 
use for courses, and faculty hold office hours in the Open Lab so they are available to 
the students. In Fall 2018, 700 students came through the Open Lab; this increased to 
1,337 in Spring 2019 (in part because of workshops offered by faculty). With this 
dedicated space, the department culture has shifted and it has the full support of 
faculty. Ms. Hernández Vélez asked about diversity in the program.  

12



 

Dr. Powell explained that Biology attracts students because of the clear career paths 
and good salaries. About 30% of the students already have a Bachelor’s degree. There 
are clubs associated with some of the grants.  Dr. Powell also has connections with 
many other institutions; as a result, these institutions send students to Community 
College of Philadelphia to better their preparation. Dr. Celenza added that Dr. Powell 
intentionally hires for diversity. Ms. McPherson noted that the program’s diversity is 
a contrast to a general lack of diversity she has seen on some boards.  
 
Based on all the work that the program does, Ms. Posoff asked if the headcount 
projections were appropriate. Dr. Powell explained that enrollments have been steady 
with no need to cancel courses, which is in contrast to some programs seeing declines 
in enrollments. The program is also working on more options, including an A.A.S. 
degree in Biology, which would articulate to Biotechnology and Biopharmaceutical 
Bachelor’s degrees.  
 
Dr. Powell provided an overview of the AMP (Louis Stokes Alliance for Minority 
Participation) grant. The College has had this grant for 25 years. Through this grant, 
Dr. Powell has met leaders of other institutions, which has opened doors nationwide 
for the program and students. For instance, AMP-Penn and AMP-Delaware will come 
to the College for a course, and the College has reciprocal relationships with Temple 
and Drexel. The College has faculty who came from AMP programs. Before each 
semester, Dr. Powell meets with the AMP students, and alumni often come back for 
these meetings.  
 
Dr. Powell commented on the growth in biology fields and the importance of 
ensuring the College is in the conversation and thus able to position students for 
positions that require an A.S. Dr. Celenza added that the quality level of the College’s 
Biology graduates is high and that a challenge is addressing the misunderstandings 
regarding what A.S. graduates can do. 

 
Action: The Student Outcomes Committee unanimously recommended that the 
Board of Trustees accept the program review with approval for five years.   

 
 

(c) Power-Up: Update on Outcomes 
Ms. de Fries provided an overview of the College’s Power Up Your Business 
initiative. It came out of small businesses being hurt by the city’s beverage tax. 
Additionally, the division saw with Goldman Sachs 10,000 Small Businesses 
(10KSB) that there were many businesses which were not at the necessary level for 
that particular program, so Power Up helps businesses stabilize themselves. A goal of 
this initiative is to strengthen neighborhood commercial corridors by supporting small 
business owners, particularly low-income owners, with free training. Partners include 
PIDC, the Free Library, and SCORE.  
 
The program is structured with two tiers. The first is the shorter program and 
incorporates peer learning, improvement plans, and 3-6 hours of coaching for the year 
after graduation. For a business to be eligible, it must not have completed 10KSB, 

13



 

must be located in Philadelphia, have at least one full-time employee, and have 
revenues less than one million dollars. Tier 2 is a store owner workshops series, in 
which workshops (available in Spanish) build on one another. Innovations include 
Philly iHub, for start-ups; Industry Best Practices, such as for early childhood 
education; and Finanta Mini-Peer Learning Experience (in Spanish). So far, 157 
businesses have taken part, representing 39 zip codes. 91% of the businesses are 
minority-owned and 80% are women-owned. It has encompassed 258 full-time 
employees and 207 part-time employees. An annual report is sent to the City Council. 
The program developed a survey for cohort participants to complete one year after 
finishing the program. Within one year of having completed Power Up, 56% of 
businesses hired a new employee and 29% launched a new service or product. For 
every $100,000 invested in Power Up, the economic impact over 10 years is $22.1 
million. 

 
 

(d) CCRC Case Study: How Community College of Philadelphia Set the Pace for 
Guided Pathways Reform 
Dr. Hirsch provided an overview of the College’s Guided Pathways work. The 
College was in the original cohort of 30 institutions chosen in 2015. The Community 
College Research Center (CCRC) has visited the College several times to talk with 
faculty and staff. CCRC conducts these visits to get a sense of the impact Guided 
Pathways work is having and also to provide guidance. CCRC was interested in the 
College’s work because it is an urban institution but also because it was in the midst 
of contract negotiations but was still able to accomplish a lot.  
 
Five institutions have been highlighted by CCRC in case studies regarding 
implementation and outcomes to date. The case studies examine the four pillars of 
Guided Pathways reforms and their components: clarifying the paths, helping 
students get on a path, helping students stay on their path, and ensuring that students 
are learning. The authors highlighted the new advising model, changes to 
developmental education to help students reach college-level sooner, first-year 
experience courses, and our next set of initiatives. CCRC collects data on key 
performance indicators, including those related to credit momentum, completion of 
gateway courses, placement, and changes in developmental education. The College 
has seen an incremental upswing for these metrics, which will then produce improved 
retention rates.  
 
Dr. Hirsch went through the Board Dashboard. There is a section on student success, 
which includes metrics on enrollment, persistence, and completion. The aspirational 
group is comprised of like institutions who have been finalists for the Aspen Prize; 
the median for this group is used as a target. The data for increasing persistence has 
been inching up, and preliminary data for the Fall 2018 cohort is positive. The 3-year 
completion rate increased for the Fall 2015 cohort. Dr. Hirsch described possible 
drivers of the positive outcomes. Developmental education innovations have led to 
moving more students through the pipeline more quickly and then retaining more 
students. The Accelerated Learning Program for English is now fully at scale. 

14



 

Another reform includes full-time advisors; programs with assigned full-time 
advisors saw an increase in retention rates after the department was established in Fall 
2016. 

 
 

(e) New Business 
There was no new business. 

 
 Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Student Outcomes Committee of the Board is scheduled for 
November 7, 2019 at 1:30 p.m. in Conference Room M2-34. 
 
 

Attachments: 
Minutes of September 5, 2019 
Academic Program Review: Biology A.S. Program – Executive Summary 
CCRC Balancing Urgency and Patience: How Community College of Philadelphia Set the Pace 
for Guided Pathways Reform 

15



 

STUDENT OUTCOMES COMMITTEE OF THE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 
MINUTES 

 
Thursday, September 5, 2019 

1:30 p.m. 
Conference Room M2-34 

 

Presiding:  Ms. Hernández Vélez 

Committee  
Members:   Mr. Clancy, Ms. Fulmore-Townsend, Ms. McPherson 
 
College  
Members:  Ms. de Fries, Dr. Gay, Dr. Generals, Dr. Hirsch, Dr. Roberts 
 
Guests: Ms. Frizell, Ms. Gordon, Dr. Iepson, Ms. Ireland, Mr. Morrison, Dr. Sweet 
 
(1) Executive Session 

There were no agenda items for the Executive Session. 

 
(2) Public Session 
 

(a) Approval of the Minutes of June 6, 2019 
The minutes were approved unanimously.  

 
(b) Academic Program Reviews: A.A. in Art and Design and A.A. in Psychology 

Ms. Frizell, from the Office of Academic Assessment, noted that the A.A. Art and 
Design program had undergone a major change when it went from being a select to 
an open program. The program should observe if this has any effect in the next five 
years. Dr. Iepson, the department head, explained that as a select program, students 
had to meet with faculty and review their portfolio, after which paperwork was 
completed to place the student in the major. This was actually a hurdle for students 
and the College’s Guided Pathways work decreases the need for it. Since the change 
to an open program, enrollment expanded from 207 to 295 this year (projection was 
240). While the portfolio review allowed for a direct connection between student and 
faculty, the program instituted a day-long orientation to ensure that personal 
connection is still there. Dr. Hirsch commented that the program is a benchmark for 
other programs and that Dr. Iepson is a very active faculty member (head of Phi Theta 
Kappa; Honors program; Lindback Distinguished Teaching award winner; Mosel 
award recipient). 
 
Regarding the A.A. Psychology program, Ms. Gordon, from the Office of Academic 
Assessment, stated that the primary issue the program addressed since the previous 

16



 

review was that the program had a higher percent of students not persisting than the 
College average. Since then, the program has implemented cross-course themes to 
increase knowledge transfer across courses. Based on the current review, the program 
should investigate why students are transferring without completing a degree, since 
the program’s figure was higher than the College average. In response to a question 
from the committee regarding the higher percent of students on probation, Dr. Sweet, 
the division dean, explained that the program is a non-select program and as such, it 
may have students who are still progressing through their developmental courses or 
may not be ready for the rigors of college courses. She also said that the program will 
look at the students who transfer or leave with fewer than 12 college credits. Mr. 
Morrison, the department head, described how it is a newer program and that it is 
focused on moving forward. For instance, last semester the program produced its first 
newsletter (with over half the articles written by students). He also explained that all 
courses required for the program are available online and as such, students can 
complete the program online, which allows more options for students. The program 
has approximately eight students who complete all their courses online, but in 
general, most students who take online courses also take in-person courses. Online 
sections of Psychology courses are filling early. Online sections were originally 
taught by full-time faculty, but now part-time faculty also want to teach online 
sections; adding new sections allows this. Dr. Hirsch added that the Curriculum 
Coordinator, Davido Dupree, has taken initiative in building the program and efforts 
are beginning to take shape. 
 

 
Action: The Student Outcomes Committee unanimously recommended that the 
Board of Trustees accept the program reviews with approval for five years.   

 
 

(c) Philadelphia Workforce Development Strategy 
Ms. de Fries began the discussion by explaining that she and Dr. Generals are on a 
city-wide committee on “Fueling Philadelphia’s Talent Engine.” Ms. Ireland, a 
member of the Board, then provided an overview of the work this committee and the 
city have done. The group originated with work from 2016 regarding the city’s 
poverty rate and its original strategy was to concentrate on career pathways, meet 
people where they are and guide them throughout their careers. The group’s three 
goals now are to connect citizens to the skills needed in the workforce; overcome 
barriers in finding meaningful career opportunities for the most vulnerable citizens; 
and build a workforce system to do so effectively. The group developed 9 
recommendations and 23 metrics. The city has experienced some early big wins and 
the College has helped with several goals via the PAsmart grant, expanded career 
opportunities, P-Tech, and CareerLink. There has been a shift in the group’s approach 
from more theoretical and vision-building to now more understanding the root causes 
of poverty and system-building to address this. The biggest initiative has been the 
Future of Work project. One tenet of this is to ensure digital access, equity, and 
literacy; currently 24.7% of households in Philadelphia have no digital access. 
Increasing adult education is possible with an increase in digital access. Another tenet 
is for city government to be prepared on issues such as automation, innovation, 

17



 

education, etc. On November 6-7, the city will be hosting the project’s third 
conference; the topic will be applicable business solutions. The city government is the 
second largest employer in the city and it therefore needs to examine what it can do as 
an employer and to help prepare people for more complex work. Part of this is 
determining how workforce development can be ready for this. The city has curated a 
field of applicants to be part of the Workforce Professional Alliance. A first step for 
this group is to quantify what high-quality workforce training would look like. Work 
continues on the “City as Model Employer” project. 
 
Regarding how the College can help, Ms. Ireland explained that it needs to have the 
flexibility to respond to the marketplace in different ways. For instance, it can work 
on determining what skill sets are needed for in-demand work. Ms. de Fries then 
described the work Workforce and Economic Innovation (WEI) has done and 
continues to do. The College provides instruction for several apprenticeship programs 
and leads on several pre-apprenticeship programs: 1199C Early Childhood Education, 
JEVS PITOC, and Communities in Schools; Career Readiness Skills, Industrial 
Maintenance, and Pathways to Manufacturing. Almost 100 people have taken part in 
the various apprenticeships/pre-apprenticeships programs. WEI also provides high 
quality skills training, with enrollments of 3,227 participants. Areas included massage 
therapy, CNC lab, and Philadelphia Works Vocational Skills Training grants. To help 
address barriers Philadelphians face, the College has initiatives that include Single 
Stop, the CCAMPIS grant (for childcare), the KEYS Program, and contextualized 
math and literacy curricula. 

 
 

(d) New Business 
There was no new business. 

 
 Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Student Outcomes Committee of the Board is scheduled for 
October 3, 2019 at 1:30 p.m. in Conference Room M2-34. 
 
 

Attachments: 
Minutes of June 6, 2019 
Academic Program Review: Art and Design A.A – Executive Summary 
Academic Program Review: Psychology A.A. – Executive Summary 

18



Academic Program Review: 
Biology AS 

Authors: 

Dr.  Stewart Avart,  Teresa Frizell,  Elizabeth  Gordon,  Mark  Piazza,  Dr.  Linda  Powell 

Summer  2019  

19



2019 Academic Program Review  Biology AS   

1. Executive Summary 
The Biology Program was established in Fall 2014. Since that time enrollment has grown steadily. It 

is a select program, requiring placement at ENGL 101 and Math 162 levels for entry. The Program 

has awarded 20 degrees since 2016, the earliest date a student could have finished the Program. 

The Program retained a higher proportion of students than on average across the College. It offers 

majors and non‐majors numerous study, research, and award opportunities. The Program enrolled a 

lower proportion of Black students and a higher proportion of White students than the average 

across the College, but on aggregate enrolls more than 60% students of color. It has a 

comprehensive system for course‐level assessment data analysis. 

A. Key Findings 
Enrollment and Demographics 

1. Biology’s headcount ranged between five at the Program’s start to 144 in Fall 2018.  

2. On average, enrollment was evenly divided between full‐ and part‐time students, in contrast 

to the College’s average of 73% part‐time students. 

3. Biology averaged 28 percentage points higher enrollment of students with 24 credits or 

more than the College average. 

4. The Program averaged 64% students of color and 63% female students. 

5. The Program averaged 8.3 percentage points higher enrollment of people who identified as 

Asian females, nine percentage points lower enrollment of people who identified as Black 

females, and four percentage points lower enrollment of people who identified as Black 

males than the College averages. This difference was mainly accounted for in higher 

enrollments of people who identified as White males and White females. 

 

Retention 

6. At 80%, the proportion of Biology students who returned to the Program from Fall to Spring 

semester in the same academic year (Fall to Spring) averaged 15 percentage points higher 

than the proportion of students who returned to the same program across the College, Fall 

to Spring. 

7. At 45%, the proportion of Biology students who returned to the Program from one Fall to 

the next Fall (Fall to Fall) averaged nine percentage points higher than the proportion of 

students who returned to the same program across the College, Fall to Fall. 

8. The Program has created and implemented extensive retention strategies including 

supervised out‐of‐class lab time, research opportunities, and extracurricular activities. 

 

Graduation 

9. The Program has awarded 20 degrees since 2016. 

 

 

 

 

20



2019 Academic Program Review  Biology AS   

Transfer 

10. The Biology Program was developed according to Pennsylvania Transfer and Articulation 

Oversight (TAOC) guidelines for transfer. The A.S. is accepted in full by Temple University, all 

PASSHE Schools, and is under the umbrella of most dual‐admissions agreements at the 

College. 

11. 48% of first‐time Biology students transferred to another institution. The majority of those 

had 45 or more credits. This includes students who graduated. 

12. CCP Biology has had defined REU (Research Experience for Undergraduates) slots in 
Children’s Hospital of Philadelphia Research Institute Summer Scholars program (CRISSP) 

since 2014. 

 

Assessment 

13. All Program faculty regularly conduct comprehensive Course Learning Outcome (CLO) 

assessment, report and analyze the data, and create and implement teaching and learning 

changes in response. 

14. The Curriculum Map shows Program Learning Outcome (PLO) assessment in upper‐level 

biology courses, but the Program has chosen to present the assessment data only for 

Biology 123 and 124, since those are the only two major‐only courses in the Program. 

15. CLOs from 123 and 124 are mapped to PLOs, but it is unclear how the Program determined 

whether the benchmark of 75% was met in each assessment cycle. 

  

Cost 

16. Biology averaged $185.24 per credit hour, compared to $198.58 for the Division of Math, 

Science, and Health Careers, and $172.91 for the College. 

17. The Program has strategies for controlling program costs, including scheduling for high 

section efficiency and creating and replicating lab materials in‐house. 

 

  Findings from last audit – Biology was established in 2014. This is the first program 

review. 

   

Growth and Retention Benchmarks 

        3 Year      5 Year 

  Fall 2018  Fall 2019  Fall 2020  Fall 2021  Fall 2023  Fall 2024 

Headcount  144  146  148  150  152  154 

Returned to 
the Same 
Program 

70.1%  71%  72%  73%  74%  75% 

21



2019 Academic Program Review  Biology AS   

Returned to 
Different 
Program 

9.0%  8.0%  7.0%  6.0%  5.0%  4.0% 

Graduated  1.4%  2.0%  3.0%  4.0%  5.0%  6.0% 

Did Not 
Persist 

19.4%  18.0%  17.0%  16.0%  15.0%  14.0% 

 

B. Action Items 
The Office of Assessment and Evaluation makes the following recommendations for the Program. 

Assessment 

1. Ensure the curriculum map accurately shows the PLO assessment plan. 

2. Clarify what percentage of CLOs must meet the benchmark in order to declare that the PLO 

has also met the benchmark. 

 

C. Narrative 
The Associate of Science (A.S.) in Biology degree program is for students who wish to pursue 

baccalaureate studies in the biological sciences or plan to fulfill prerequisite courses for pre‐

pharmacy school or for programs such as pre‐veterinary, pre‐medical, and pre‐dental. To 

enable seamless transfer, this curriculum is designed to parallel the first two years of study 

offered in biology programs at other colleges and universities. 

The Program offers support for students through Open Lab, research opportunities, grants, 

Science Poster Week, and more. Open Lab expanded to the NERC campus in the last decade, 

supported by lab staff, faculty and student workers. NWRC and WRC offered periodic open lab 

sessions, based on faculty availability and enrollment. The dedicated space, Wi‐Fi access, and 

Clear Touch screens have enabled and supported the increase in use of this space for exam 

preparation by both majors and non–majors. Open lab use increased from 715 students in Fall 

2018 to 1337 students in Spring 2019. In addition, faculty use the space to hold open office 

hours. 

The AS in Biology is designed to fulfill the first two years of a Bachelor’s of Science in Biology. 

The curriculum has been widely accepted by the College’s main transfer partners including 

Temple University, Drexel University, and LaSalle University. Course offerings have expanded in 

the last two years to include Biochemistry I (BIOL 281) and Ecology and Field Biology (BIOL 225). 

The Biochemistry course is a requirement for students considering going to medical or 

pharmacy school, or applying to a Physician Assistant program. The Ecology and Field Biology 

course was designed as the foundation for a Plant Biology option within the AS in Biology 

curriculum. 

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



MEETING OF THE BUSINESS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Community College of Philadelphia  
Wednesday, October 23, 2019 – 9:00 A.M. 

 
 

Present: Lydia Hernández Vélez, Esq., Chair, presiding; Mr. Harold Epps, Mr. Steve 
Herzog, Mr. Michael Soileau (teleconference), Dr. Donald Generals, Ms. Leslie 
Bluestone, Mr. Jacob Eapen, Mr. Michael Fohner, Dr. Samuel Hirsch, Mr. Gim 
Lim, Mr. James P. Spiewak, Victoria Zellers, Esq.; and Invited Guests; Dr. Ellen 
Jo Waller, President, Foundation Board and Mr. Andre Allen, Principal, Phoenix 
Capital Partners, LLP 

 
AGENDA 

 
PUBLIC SESSION 

 
(1) U.S. Department of Education Program Review (Information Item): 
 

Dr. Hirsch reported that the U.S. Department of Education will be conducting a Program 
Review to assess the College's administration of the Title IV (financial aid) and HEA programs. 
The review, which will begin on November 4, 2019, initially will cover 2018-2019 and 2019-
2020 award years, but may be expanded if appropriate. The review will focus on examining 
various publications, fiscal records for financial aid, and a review of a sample of student 
records.  In response to Committee members’ questions, Dr. Hirsch noted that the last review 
occurred in 2010 with no findings related to financial aid processing.  The Department required 
that some additional information related to financial aid programs be included in some of the 
College’s printed materials.  He expects the review to be completed in two to three days and 
staff are prepared. 

 
(2) Bookstore Management RFP (Action Item): 

 
Discussion:  Mr. Eapen stated that the College’s contract with the current bookstore 

provider, Barnes & Noble College expires December 31, 2019. An RFP was developed and was 
issued on August 29, 2019 requesting proposals for a five (5) year contract with two (2), one 
(1) year extension options to operate the College’s Bookstores at all four locations effective 
January 1, 2020.   

 
Mr. Eapen reported that due to the state of the current bookstore market, only two 

firms - Barnes & Noble College and Follett Higher Education were invited to participate in this 
effort and proposals from both firms were received. An evaluation team consisting of members 
from Budgets & Financial Services and Academic and Student Success (two deans and two 
department chairs) reviewed the proposals and participated in the presentations made by both 
firms.  The College also utilized the services of Duvall Consulting during this process.   

 
Mr. Spiewak noted that the committee evaluated the two firms around a number of 

criteria including:  management and staffing plans; comprehensiveness of bookstore services; 
marketing; technology; financial considerations; ability to meet all RFP requirements; and 

43



quality and thoroughness of proposal and presentation.  It was the opinion of the evaluation 
team that both firms have the resources required to successfully manage the bookstore 
operations for the College.  Mr. Spiewak stated that the financial considerations did not vary 
significantly and policies concerning pricing of books, buyback opportunities, refunds, and price 
matching were comparable.  Both firms had the necessary technology to integrate with the 
College’s financial aid credit program and for faculty to place their textbook adoptions.  Follett 
presented an interesting concept for the Northwest Regional Center which was moving the 
bookstore location from the basement floor to the first floor and allocated capital dollars for this 
as part of their financial proposal.  In response to Committee members’ questions, staff noted 
that there should be no impact on students by switching firms and that students would be able 
to sell back books at the end of the semester as they currently can.  It was noted that Follett 
has a division entirely devoted to bookstore transitions led by a Vice President and that they 
participate in up to 50 transitions every year.   

 
Attachment A contains the Follett and Barnes & Noble Comparative Financial Proposal.  

Attachment A also contains a comparative review of services of the two firms. 
 
Mr. Spiewak stated that after considering all aspects relating to bookstore management, 

it was the consensus of the evaluation committee that Follett’s technology capabilities and their 
approach to marketing and communications gave them the edge over Barnes and Noble and 
made Follett the best fit for the College.  College staff recommend that a five-year contract 
with two (2) one (1) year extension options be awarded to Follett Higher Education effective 
January 1, 2020. 

 
Action:  Mr. Epps moved and Mr. Herzog seconded the motion that the Committee 

recommend to the full Board that a five-year contract with two (2) one (1) year extension 
options be awarded to Follett Higher Education effective January 1, 2020.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
(3) 2019 Financial Performance Indicators (Information Item): 

 
Mr. Eapen stated that the annual financial performance indicators were developed in 

collaboration with the Board to provide a snapshot of the College's current financial operating 

characteristics. Staff presented the 2019 Financial Performance Indicators. (See Attachment B.) 

These indicators incorporate the financial results for the 2018-19 fiscal year and include 

preliminary projections for the current year.  Mr. Eapen noted that the College is financially 

viable with strong liquidity, having had fifteen consecutive years of balance budgets.  There 

have been no audit exceptions nor findings of any internal control weaknesses.  In regards to 

financial challenges he mentioned:  ongoing levels of support from the City and State; large 

dependence on student tuition and fees to support the College budget; revenue pressures from 

declining enrollment; and capital resources needed to implement the Facilities Master Plan. 

 
(4) Financing for the Career & Advanced Technology Center (Information Item): 

 
Mr. Eapen briefly reviewed the updated budget for the Career and Advanced 

Technology Center of $38 million.  He noted that built into the construction cost estimates were 
a four percent contingency and a five percent inflation factor.  He reviewed Attachment C 
which contains the estimated funding and projected costs.  Mr. Andre Allen, Principal, Phoenix 

44



Capital Partners, LLP provided an update on current bond market conditions, noting that based 
on current conditions, the College could expect to the all-in interest rate to be 2.5% as opposed 
to the 2.78% rate when the initial $10 million borrowing took place this past May.  

 
Staff noted that they were in the process of formalizing several partnerships with 

entities related to the Automotive Technology program and has submitted a funding proposal 
to the Lenfest Foundation.  Staff are also actively engaged in providing information to 
Community Development Entities (CDEs) in order to secure New Market Tax Credits. 

 
(5) Request to Update the Commonfund Resolution (Action Item): 

 
Discussion:  Mr. Eapen explained that the Commonfund is requesting that the College 

provide an updated Resolution.  The original Resolution that was established provided 
authorization for Jacob Eapen and Todd Murphy, the former College Controller, on the 
Commonfund’s old Treasury platform administered through Bancorp.  The Commonfund 
discontinued that program and those accounts have been closed, so the authorizations are no 
longer valid.  The Commonfund is still in need of an updated approval for the Commonfund 
specific accounts in which the College is currently invested and changing the authorized 
representative to Jacob Eapen and Gim Lim.  This will be relevant for placing transactions into 
and out of the funds, as well as providing approval when signatures are required (such as 
signing a non-disclosure agreement to release the SSAE16 reports from State Street).  
Attachment D contains the Resolution and the Commonfund Application.  Mr. Eapen stated that 

staff is requesting that the Committee recommend to the full Board that the Resolution be 

executed at the November 7th, Board of Trustees meeting. 
 
Action:  Mr. Epps moved and Mr. Herzog seconded the motion that the Committee 

recommend to the full Board that the Commonfund Resolution be executed at the November 
7th, Board of Trustees meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 
(6) Naming Rights for the Library and Learning Commons (Information Item): 

 
Mr. Eapen stated that Attachment E contains suggested giving levels for the Library and 

Learning Commons.  The gift level was determined by 50% of the cost of the space and a 
subjective assessment of how appealing each space might be for a donor.  Attachment E also 
contains the Naming Policy effective March 2, 2017.  Mr. Fohner displayed the individual rooms 
and areas under consideration for naming.  Staff and Committee members discussed strategies 
related to gift-giving processes.  Mr. Eapen noted that the project is fully funded via a bond 
that was issued in 2018.   

 
(7) Next Meeting 

 
The next regularly scheduled meeting of the Committee will be held on Wednesday, 

November 20th at 9:00 A.M. in the Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1. 
 
 
 

JE/lm 
Attachments 
BAC\October 23, 2019MINUTES.DOC 

45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



 

 

Community College of Philadelphia 

Board of Trustees 

2020 Meeting Dates 

 
 

 

February 6, 2020 

April 2, 2020                  

           May 7, 2020 

June 4, 2020 

September 3, 2020 

October 1, 2020 

November 5, 2020 

 

 

 

 
Time:    3:00 P.M.  

Location:  Main Campus, 1700 Spring Garden Street 

Mint Building, Isadore A. Shrager Boardroom, M2-1 
    

 

77



 

Community College of Philadelphia  
2019-20 Important Dates 

Event Date and Time Location Board Representative 

Reception and Tour, 
Library Commons/Library 

Thursday, November 14, 2019 
5:30 p.m. 

Bonnell Building - Library Bridge  

Board of Trustees 
Retreat 

Saturday, November 16, 2019 
8:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m.  

Center for Business and Industry Building, 
C2-5 

 

Holiday Celebration Wednesday, December 11, 2019 11:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.  
Winnet Student Life Building, 
Great Hall, S2-19 

 

Winter Recess – College 
Closed 

December 24, 2019, 12:00 p.m.- 
January 1, 2020 

  

Philadelphia Martin 
Luther King, Jr. 
Association for Non-
Violence, Inc. Awards 
and Benefit Luncheon 

Monday, January 20, 2020 
 

12:00 p.m. 
Philadelphia 201 Hotel  
17th & Race Street, Liberty Ballroom 

 

AACC/ACCT Community 
College National 
Legislative Summit 

February 9-12, 2020 Marriott Marquis 
Washington, DC 

 

Spring Break - College 
Closed 

March 2-7, 2020     

College’s Budget Hearing 
Before City Council 

April 2020, TBD City Hall, City Council Chambers, Room 400  

PA Commission for 
Community Colleges 
Annual Meeting and All-
PA Academic Awards 
 

April 6-7, 2020 Hilton Harrisburg,  
1 North 2nd Street, Harrisburg 
 
 

 

Lobby Day Tuesday, April 7, 2020 Capitol - Harrisburg  

Retirees Program & 
Reception 

Thursday, April 23, 2020 3:00 p.m. - 5:00 p.m.  Program 
Pavilion Building, Klein Cube, P2-3 
5:00 p.m. - 6:30 p.m. Dinner- Offsite  

  

Nurses Pinning 
Ceremony 

Friday, May 1, 2020 
10:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. 

Gymnasium   

Academic Awards & 
Reception 

Friday, May 1, 2020 
4:00 p.m. - 6:00 p.m. 

Bonnell Building, Large Auditorium, 
BG-20 

  

Commencement Saturday, May 2, 2020 
10:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m. 

Temple University, Liacouras Center, 1776 
North Broad Street 

  

Classified/Confidential 
Awards Luncheon  

Wednesday, May 6, 2020 
12:00 p.m. - 2:00 p.m. 

Winnet Student Life Building, Great Hall, 
Room, S2-19 

  

Foundation’s Black and 
Gold Gala 

Wednesday, June 10, 2020 
6:00 p.m.  

Crystal Tea Room 
The Wanamaker Building 
100 E. Penn Square, #9B 

 

Association of 
Community College 
Trustees (ACCT) 
Leadership Congress 

September 30 - October 3, 2020 Hyatt Regency Chicago 
Chicago, IL 

 

78



 

 
November 2019 Calendar of Events  

 
  

Faculty Arts Exhibition 
Department of Art and Design  

November 1-30, Mint Building Rotunda  
 
Diversity Fellows Program 
Office of Diversity & Equity  
 November 1, Center for Business & Industry Building, C2-28, 9:00 am – 1:00 pm 
 
Faith-Based Leaders Breakfast 
Office of the President 
 November 4, 10:00 am – 12:00 pm 
 
Nutrition & Chronic Illnesses Workshop 
Office of Human Resources 
 November 4, Winnet Student Life Building, Great Hall, 12:30 pm – 1:30 pm 
 
Election Day 
Main Campus and Northwest Regional Center 

November 5, 7:00 am – 8:00 pm 
 

Student Success Initiatives Information Session 
Student Outreach and Recruitment 

November 5, Center for Business & Industry Building, C3-05, 9:00 am – 1:00 pm 
 
BLAS the Yard Celebration 
Center for Male Engagement 

November 5, Pavilion Building, The Klein Cube, 10:00 am – 2:00 pm 
 
Dean Speakers Series welcomes Susan Jin Davis 
Business and Technology Department 

November 7, Center for Business & Industry Building, C2-28, 12:30 pm – 2:30 pm 
 
Fall Open House 2019 
West Philadelphia Regional Center 

November 7, West Regional Center, Room 111, 4:00 pm – 7:00 pm 
 
Name Change Clinic 
Paralegal Studies 

November 9, Center for Business & Industry Building, C2-05, 8:00 am – 5:00 pm 
 
Veterans Day Ceremony 
Office of Veterans Affairs 
 November 11, Bonnell Building, Lobby, 10:00 am – 11:00 am  
 
 

79



President’s Town Hall Meeting 
Office of the President 
 November 11, Bonnell Building, Large Auditorium, 3:00 pm – 4:00 pm 
 
Phi Theta Kappa 2019/2020 Inductions 
Office of Student Life 
 November 12, Winnet Student Life Building, Great Hall, 5:00 pm – 8:00 pm 
 
50th Anniversary Scholars Event 
Academic and Student Success Operations 

November 13, Winnet Student Life Building, Lobby, 4:00 pm – 8:00 pm 
 
Junior Achievement Workshop 
Division Access Community Engagement 

November 14, Winnet Student Life Building, The Great Hall 8:00 am – 2:00 pm 
 
Scholarship Night for Philadelphia High School Students 
Office of Admissions 
 November 14, Center for Business & Industry Building, C2-28, 5:00 pm – 7:00 pm 
 
World Cultures and Language Awareness Day 
International Student Services 
 November 18, Bonnell Building, Lobby, 10:30 am – 1:30 pm 
 
Women in Motion Mentee Orientation 
Career Connections 
 November 18, Center for Business & Industry Building, C2-05, 4:30 pm – 6:00 pm 
  
Fall Health Expo  
Women’s Outreach & Advocacy Center 
 November 20, Bonnell Building, Lobby, 10:00 am – 2:00 pm 
 
Video Game Conference 
Psychology, Education/Human Services 
 November 20, Center for Business & Industry Building, C2-28, 8:00 am – 5:00 pm 
 
Hospitality & Tourism Day 
Office of Admissions 
 November 21, Pavilion Building, The Klein Cube, 9:00 am – 2:00 pm 
 
Thanksgiving Luncheon   
Office of Student Life 
 November 25, Winnet Student Life Building, Great Hall, 12:00 pm – 2:00 pm 
 
 
 
 

80


	tableofcontents11.7.19
	agenda 11.7.19
	10.3.19BoardProceedings
	10.3.19Minutes
	Record of Grants & Gifts - NOV'19 (1)
	October 3 2019 Student Outcomes Committee Minutes
	SOC minutes for 10-3-19 DRAFT 10-21-19 REVISED 10.23.19
	SOC minutes for 9-5-19 DRAFT 9-18-19
	2019 Program Review Biology Executive Summary
	Guided path no numbers

	Business Affairs Committee Meeting Minutes October 23, 2019.doc (2)
	ADPD11.tmp
	DATE: October 18, 2019


	2020 Board Meeting Dates
	Important Dates 2019-20
	Calendar of Events



